
 

Borough of TenaflyBorough of TenaflyBorough of TenaflyBorough of Tenafly    

MAYOR AND COUNCIL 

BUDGET MEETING MINUTES 

THURSDAY, MARCH 10, 2011 

7:30 P.M. – 10:00 P.M. 

 

The meeting was called to order at 7:35 P.M. with the reading of the Open Public Meetings Act statement by Mayor 
Rustin. 
  

   Council members: Barry Honig, Martha Kerge, Nadia LaMastra, Jon Warms 

   Borough Administrator: Jewel Thompson-Chin 

   Chief Financial Officer: Gene Vinci 

   Absent:   Mayor Peter Rustin and Councilman Michael Lattif 
    
   Library Director: Gina Webb-Metz 
   Recreation:  Tony Favorito, Director 
      Carol Roux, Assistant Director 
   Fire Department: Richard Philpott, Fire Chief 
    
 
C. LaMastra read the following statement: 
 
"Public Comments: A total of 15 minutes has been allocated for this purpose.  Citizens are welcome to address the 
Mayor and Council on any governmental item of concern to them, whether or not it is scheduled on the agenda below.  
Citizens must give their names and addresses when recognized to speak.  Large groups are urged to select someone to 
represent them.  The public is advised that these meetings are recorded and are subject to the Open Public Records Act." 
 
There was no public comment.  
 
DCA Budget Update 
 
Mrs. Thompson-Chin stressed the importance of following the proposed schedule of budget introduction on March 22nd 
and adoption on April 26th. She explained that she and Gene Vinci had attended a budget update on March 4th in which a 
presentation was given by Mark Pfeiffer and Tina Zapicchi. They advised that the State is directing an introduction date of 
March 11th and adoption date of April 22nd. Mrs. Thompson-Chin remarked that although no special meetings need to be 
scheduled to abide by these dates, Council should schedule the budget introduction and adoption at the next meeting in 
which action is scheduled to take place. Mr. Pfeiffer advised that Governor Christie has made it part of his best practices 
initiative to have municipal budgets adopted in a timely manner and the DCA will be very strict about these deadlines. 
She advised that there are additional reasons to follow the proposed schedule. After introduction, the budget becomes 
public record and would allow for public discussion and participation. In addition, if introduction is delayed, it hurts the 
timing of adoption as there has to be a minimum of 28 days between introduction and adoption. She added that the 
newsletter is scheduled to be released on April 1st and she feels that the introduction date of March 22nd allows time to 
craft information pertaining to the budget to place in the newsletter. Finally, she reminded Council that the current auditor 
has only been authorized to perform work for the 2011 budget through May 30th.  
 



 

C. Honig expressed his opinion that the restructuring of the Department of Code Enforcement needs to be included in the 
introduced budget and questioned whether the discussion should be moved up from March 29th. Mrs. Thompson-Chin 
advised that they could revise the budget by an estimated percentage.  
 
C. Kerge questioned how involved the auditor is prior to introduction. Mr. Vinci responded that the role of our auditor is 
to place the numbers onto the budget document as well as check the calculations and verify that they are in compliance. C. 
LaMastra requested that Mr. Cerullo attend the March 15th Budget Meeting. 
 
C. Honig again raised the issue of the restructuring of Code Enforcement and having the sub-committee meet prior to 
introduction of the budget on March 22nd. C. LaMastra and C. Kerge, the other members of the sub-committee, agreed 
with C. Honig and will schedule a meeting of the sub-committee for Monday, March 14th.  
 
C. Barzelatto raised concerns over Youth Services and the fact that director is paid an additional $15,000 during summer 
camp. Mrs. Thompson-Chin advised that this additional compensation is due to increased hours during summer camp; his 
regular hours are 3:00 p.m. to 9:00 p.m., and during summer camp, his hours are 8:00 a.m. to 8:00 or 9:00 p.m. As Mrs. 
Thompson-Chin advised that the Camp Director and Youth Services have two separate job descriptions, Council 
discussed the possibility of combining them into one position. C. Honig also raised the issue of the director electing 
healthcare coverage through the Borough when he could have had coverage through the school for which he is also 
employed. Mrs. Thompson-Chin responded that he is an eligible full-time employee and had been receiving coverage 
through both employers. As of May 21, 2010, the State prohibited multiple coverage through the State Health Benefits 
Program or School Employees’ Health Benefit Program and required that the employee waive their SHBP or SEHBP 
coverage. As he began working for the Borough of Tenafly first and would be eligible to retire from the Borough sooner 
than from his other employment, he chose to waive coverage through his other employer.  
 
Library – Gina Webb-Metz, Director  
 
Gina Webb-Metz, Library Director, advised that one-third of a million funding has decreased approximately 1.725% from 
2010 to 2011. She advised that there had also been a decrease in State Aid which is now down to $6,551 whereas four 
years ago it was $14,816. She explained that her main concern is the materials budget and she is working with the Board 
to find more money for materials. She stated that contract negotiations are still ongoing and as such, she has no final 
salary figures. She outlined some of the goals for this year. She explained that the Library is trying introduce e-readers as 
they becoming a large part of the library community. The staff is now in the training phase and will be circulating a small 
number of e-readers with support for patrons who are transitioning to this format. She advised that the Library would like 
to start a museum pass program in which the Library has passes that get checked out to residents, allowing them entrance 
to various museums at the membership rate. The Library is also working to better communicate with the residents by 
redesigning their website, adding more people to their Library List Serve, and distributing information to the schools 
about their programming. She advised that they are still working on increasing their media collection including books on 
CD and DVDs which are in high demand. 
 
C. Honig questioned the thought process in the labor negotiations. Ms. Webb-Metz responded that she cannot speak to 
specifics, but advised that salaries are being looked at as an area to realize savings. C. Honig expressed his opinion that 
salary increases should be kept to 0% given the reduction in funding. 
 
C. LaMastra asked whether the goal of the e-reader program is to reduce the number of books to be purchased. Ms. Webb-
Metz advised that that goal is far-off in the future as she believes there will be a long transition period. She advised that 
they will have a small number of the readers to lend out and patrons would also be able to use the consortium to access 
titles with their personal e-reader. She advised that the e-book would be available for three to four weeks on the e-reader. 
C. Warms asked how the e-reader and museum pass programs would be funded and Ms. Webb-Metz advised that funds 
would be used from their fines budget, a separate budget from the third of a million.  
 
C. LaMastra commented that when former Councilmember Rouse would give his report from the Library, the circulation 
numbers were always astronomical. Ms. Webb-Metz advised that Tenafly has become a net-plus lender, meaning that the 
Library lends more to patrons from other libraries, and as a result, they receive a check for a little over $5,000 that is 



 

deposited into the fine and fees line item. She remarked that when the economy is down, library use usually increases. 
However, she remarked that the limited parking is causing them to lose business. She also expressed her opinion that the 
decreased materials budget as well as closing eight additional Sundays during the year both will hurt circulation numbers. 
 
C. LaMastra questioned the relationship with school libraries. Ms. Webb-Metz advised that it is one of her goals for this 
year to strengthen that relationship. She advised that they do attempt to purchase the materials for the summer reading 
lists if they are given the information with enough advance notice.  
 
C. Honig asked about facilities that are in place for the disabled. Ms. Webb-Metz responded that although there is nothing 
specifically budgeted, the e-readers do have magnification for the visually-impaired and the layout of the Library is in 
compliance with ADA standards. C. Honig suggested the possibility of a grant to purchase equipment that can allow 
computers to speak with a magnification element. He suggested that the NJ State Commission may be able to help in this 
area. Ms. Webb-Metz stated that they do have an extensive book-on-CD collection. 
 
Recreation (Operating) – Anthony Favorito, Director 
 
C. LaMastra asked Anthony Favorito to describe some of the goals for this year. Mr. Favorito responded that the major 
goal is to get the municipal field restroom and concession stand project underway. C. Kerge questioned who would 
maintain the bathrooms and Mr. Favorito stated that it would be the Maintenance Department in Borough Hall. C. 
LaMastra advised that the project was to be funded by the trust account, but the bids came in higher than expected. She 
stated that the Recreation Board drafted a letter asking people to donate time, labor, and materials to help bring down 
costs. 
 
Mr. Favorito advised that background checks of the coaches are currently being completed and funding has been secured 
through the Meghan Kanka Foundation for this year. In order to cover future costs, he stated that the cosponsored sports 
have increased their fees. C. Honig asked why our Police Department could not perform this service and Mr. Favorito 
responded that the State does not allow it to be conducted by the local police.  
 
Mr. Favorito reviewed some of the changes in the budget. He advised that they no longer have a line item for the cost of 
online registration as they have been able absorb the costs through the registration fees. He advised that postage and 
printing are separate line items in the budget and those funds are used for the printing and mailing of the Recreation’s 
seasonal guides which are distributed three times per year. C. Kerge questioned the Board of Education rental facility line 
item. C. LaMastra explained that the Board of Education charges the Borough for the use of their custodial services. Mr. 
Favorito added that when using a Board of Education facility, there must be a custodian with a boiler license on duty and 
the Borough is charged $60/hour for that service.  C. Barzelatto suggested charging the Board of Education for the use of 
the lights at the municipal field. Mr. Favorito explained that although the former Administrator had suggested charging 
users of the field for the use of the lighting and a fee of approximately $15 had been agreed upon, it was not approved by 
the governing body. C. Barzelatto said that a compromise should be sought as we do not want to be charged for the use of 
the Board of Education’s fields. C. Warms questioned why there are several line items in which more is being budgeted 
than spent. Mrs. Thompson-Chin and Mr. Vinci advised that these numbers were as of December and charges for 2010 are 
still being paid. Mr. Vinci added that the reserves are used to pay the 2010 costs that are billed in 2011. He stated that he 
would provide updated budget numbers for the Council. 
 
Mr. Favorito further reviewed some of the goals for this year. He advised that he had completed the National Alliance for 
Youth Sports program and had received his certification as a youth sports administrator. He reported that Carol Roux, his 
Assistant Director, has become involved in their associations. Another goal is to improve their town-wide special events. 
He reported that they have added a high school basketball league and would like to add more programs, but facility space 
is a concern. He advised that capital projects come from their own trust accounts and they are currently looking into 
resurfacing the tennis and basketball courts. Mr. Favorito and Ms. Roux described some of their current programming and 
C. LaMastra expressed her opinion that there needs to be better advertising of their adult programs. 
 
C. Honig questioned how the results of the background checks are disseminated. Mr. Favorito advised that the results go 
directly to Chief Bruno. Mrs. Thompson-Chin added that if there is an issue, the first notification is not explicit; the Chief 



 

performs a crosscheck as to the specifics. C. LaMastra commented that the information as to who receives the information 
as well as the appeal process is spelled out in the ordinance. 
 
Recreation (Trust) – Anthony Favorito, Director 
 
Mr. Vinci explained that there are two different trust accounts, #5000 is for direct costs and #9000 is for administrative 
fees. He explained that the balance is cumulative from over the years and earlier this year, he transferred most of the 
balances in the 9000 account, equaling $136,000, into the facility account for use in the municipal field restroom and 
concession stand. Mr. Favorito pointed out that the restrooms can now tie into the utility lines for the Police trailers. C. 
Barzelatto suggested that if there is any money left over from the $136,000 set aside for the restroom and concession stand 
project, the money should be put towards lightning detectors as he feels it is a real safety issue. C. LaMastra stated that the 
Recreation Board has discussed the installation of lighting detectors and plan to approach soccer, baseball, and even the 
pools for assistance in funding. C. Barzelatto questioned why the tennis court pavers and retaining wall improvement 
project was not a project that the Board of Education is undertaking. C. LaMastra responded that that issue can be brought 
up at the Joint Use Committee. 
 
Review of Changes to Budget 
 
Mr. Vinci reviewed the various changes that have been made to the budget as a result of the budget meetings. He advised 
that the bottom line has increased by $43,000 as he had added $24,000 to the legal line, $19,500 to the Engineering line, 
and included preliminary numbers for the changes to the police budget to include the promotions and new hires that are 
still under consideration. He advised that the Police budget has actually decreased from the initial budget by $81,000. C. 
Honig asked how many new hires were included in these numbers and Mr. Vinci responded that three new hires were 
anticipated. C. Honig asked for a spreadsheet of the Police Budget without the new hires for 2010, 2011, and 2012. Mrs. 
Thompson-Chin advised that the Police Commission will be meeting on Monday to decide on their proposal for the new 
hires. C. Kerge questioned whether there were any cars requested in the current budget. Mrs. Thompson-Chin advised that 
vehicle requests would be made at the Capital budget meeting on Monday. 
 
Fire Department – Richard Philpott, Chief 
 

Richard Philpott, Fire Chief, advised that everything is going well within the department, but enrollment is down for 
several different reasons. C. Warms pointed out that the governing body had recently revised the ordinance to allow for 
non-residents to volunteer is Tenafly’s Fire Department. Mr. Philpott remarked that because most other towns have 
volunteer fire departments, he did not feel this change would help very much. C. Kerge asked whether sharing fire 
services with other towns would help. Mr. Philpott responded that the mutual aid system is working well as is and if the 
Borough were to regionalize, then the Fire Department would become paid. C. Barzelatto explained that putting money in 
the budget for items such as clothing allowances, training, associations, and conferences are all incentives for people to 
join.  
 
C. LaMastra pointed out that the overall budget decreased approximately $1,000 from last year. Mr. Philpott advised that 
there had been more of a decrease, but they added an additional $5,000 for the Junior Firefighter Program. C. Warms 
asked about the shared HAZMAT services with New Milford and Mr. Philpott explained that they had been paying for 
this service through the Mid-Bergen Regional HAZMAT services program for $1,500, but beginning this year, they are 
trying to make arrangements with New Milford’s HAZMAT team to use their services at no cost.  
 
C. LaMastra raised the issue of decreased membership and suggested the use of the electronic sign to advertise that 
volunteers are needed. Mr. Philpott added that they are hoping that through the Junior Firefighter’s Program, it will 
encourage parents to become involved. He advised that they are considering having a monetary incentive for answering 
night calls. C. Kerge suggested having an enrollment incentive as well. Council agreed that there should be a full 
discussion on the recruitment of new volunteers and retention of current volunteers. The Fire Department is to draft a 
proposal on incentives to increase membership and when said proposal is ready, it will be placed on a work session for 
discussion. 
 



 

In response to C. Kerge’s question about vehicle requests, Mr. Vinci advised that the Police Department had budgeted 
$56,000 in their operating budget for two new vehicles. C. Kerge questioned why and Mrs. Thompson-Chin responded 
that it is part of the fleet management program. C. Kerge suggested delaying the purchase of new vehicles for a year as 
one of the biggest criticisms she hears is there are too many police vehicles. Mr. Vinci read Chief Bruno’s narrative in 
which he explains the reason for this request is his fleet management program was negatively affected by no purchases 
being authorized in 2009 and authorizing the purchase of these vehicles will help decrease maintenance costs. 
 
ADJOURNMENT  
 

As there was no further business to come before the Council, on a motion by C. LaMastra, second by                                             
C. Warms, and unanimously carried, the meeting was adjourned at 10:01 p.m. 


